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HISTORIC   AMERICAN .BUILDINGS   SURVEY 

STATS   BANK OF   NIOBRARA 

HA3S Mo. ME-32 

Location:      South side of Sim Street (approximately 100' west of 
intersection with Fifth Avenue) Niobrara, Knox County/, 
Nebraska. 

USGS Niobrara Quadrangle, Universal Transverse Mercator 
Coordinates:  IM-.579470 .4733800. 

Present Owner:  United States of America (U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, 
Omaha District). 

"esent Use: 

Significance: 

Vacant, scheduled to be demolished.  (Demolished after 
this documentation was written in 1977). 

Since the 1920s, the State Bank of Niobrara, organized 
in 1913, served as the only bank for the Niobrara commun- 
ity.  Architecturally, it Is a good example of the Georgian 
Revival style in the Neo-Adamesque mode and exemplifies 
the trend towards various revival styles In the late 
nineteenth and early twentieth centuries. 

PART I.  HISTORICAL INFORMATION 

A.  Physical History: 

1. Date of erection:  The bank was built in 1920 and onened on 
August 21, 1920, as the State Sank of Niobrara. 

2. Architect:  None known. 

3. Original and subsequent owners:  The lot on which the Bank 
now stands changed ownership five times before being sold 
to the State 3ank of Niobrara in 1920 for 51,500.  This 
property was previously improved by a structure (judging 
from two mortgages taken on the  property and a mechanic's 
lien ;a. 1397 ''for materials for constructing a certain 
house") before the present structure was built in 1920. 

The bank was ordered closed in 1930 when zhe  economic 
difficulties of the depression affected the nation and 
Niobrara.  In May 1931, the Bank was reorganized and re- 
named "Bank of Niobrara". 

Alterations:  No anoarenf alterations aopear to have been 
made since the bank was built. 
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3. Sources of Informal::, on: 

1. Bibliography: 

a. Primary and unpublished sources: 

Office of the Regisrer of Deeds, Knox County, Mebraska 

b. Secondary and published sources: 

Niobrara Public Library and .s£iobrara Bicentennial 
Committee (bock later updated 1978). Miobrara 
Centennial, 1355-1955. Niobrara Tribune, 1355. 

PART II, ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATION 

A. General Statement: 

1. Architectural character: The State Bank of Miobrara is 
a good example of what most closely resembles the Georgian 
Revival style with Neo-Adamesque details. 

3. Description of Exterior: 

1. Over-all dimensions: The building, rectangular in shape, 
measures 25r (three bays) x 50'. It is one-story with a 
basement. 

2. Foundations: The foundation is cement. 

3. Wall construction, finish and color: The building has 
running bond red brick bearing wall construction. Limestone 
and patterned brickwork are the primary decorative elements. 
Limestone is used to accent the entrance and arched window 
openings. A combination of patterned brick and limestone 
is used to define the cornice line and create a decorative 
panel above the door and windows. Decorative patterned 
bricks are located below the two front windows creating 
symmetrical recessed panels and single strips of headers 
detail the three arched openings on both the front and 
rear elevations-. 
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The entire front facade -stands approximately six inches 
forward from the siae bearing walls creating an appearance of 
bordering brickwork on either side of the building. 

±.     Wall framing:  The building is framed by brick bearing Trails. 

5.  Chimney:  There is a single chimney located in the southwest 
vail of the main banking room. 

5.  Openings: 

a. Doorways -and doors:  The front doorway is detailed with 
limestone trim in a typical classical fashion.  A simple 
entablature is braced by single scroll and acanthus leaf 
brackets and long rectangular side panels.  Above the 
entablature, a recessed semi-circular window detailed by 
a row of headers, completes the doorway design. The entrance 
door contains a single rectangular pane above, with four 
square panels below. 

A cellar door entrance is located in the rear of the 
structure. 

b. Windows:  The north front entrance is flanked by two evenly 
spaced recessed arch windows formed by the combination of 
large rectangular panes topped by semi-circular lights. 
These windows echo the proportions of the doorway and result 
in a symmetrical front facade. 

Three semi-circular windows on the south (rear) elevation 
are in direct line with those on the front facade, further 
emphasizing the symmetry of the structure. 

A large, textured translucent ten-pane skylight on the roof 
is the dominant feature in the sain banking area.  A three- 
cane smaller skylight accents the president's  office, located 
in the southwest rear room of the banking area. 

Two smaller patterned one-over-one double hung sash windows 
are found in the lavatory with one rectangular double hung 
sash window over the cellar door entrance in the south wail 
above the cellar stairs. 

7.  ?.cof: 

a-   Shape, covering:  The roof is a simple flat slope type that 
runs from front to rear cf the structure.  It is covered with 
— .3 •/. 
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b.   Comics:   The  from;  cornice   is  composed, of  a  band  of 
"/erticaily set   stretchers  and  a band  of headers topped 
by a limestone  panel. 

Description of Inferior: 

1. Floor plan:  The bank  is  entered through a  small  4'  x 6' 
vestibule which opens  into  the main banking area that  measures 
36'   x 23',  with 15-^-:'  ceiling.   Three  evenly spaced doorways 
line the   south vail of the main room.   The two west doors  lead to 
the. president's office,  which is IIT  x 13'   with 8'  ceiling.  Off 
of this room,   a lavatory  stands  to  the left,  a   staircase to  the 
rear   cellar  exit   in the  center,   and  a small closet  to  the 
right.   The  east door  leads   into  a vault area.  The vault  area 
walls are   significantly thicker   (3'   vs.   2')  than those of the 
rest  of the structure. 

2. Stairways:   A stairway of dimensional lumber runs from the base- 
ment  past  the  cellar  door  entrance to the  first   floor. 

3-   Flooring:   The  public   area of the main banking room floor was 
originally covered with small white hexagonal poreclain tiles. 
Black and white  square tiles  in a geometric  pattern create  a 
four  inch border.   In ail  other  areas   such as behind the tellers 
counter and in the office  areas, there is  three  inch hardwood 
flooring.     The  entire bank floor was  covered with wall-to-wall 
carpeting   in the early 1970s. 

k.  Wail and ceiling finish:   Hot  pink painted plaster walls and dark 
mahogany  stained woodwork are used throughout.   The woodwork 
includes  a chairraii that  runs  along the west  side wall of the 
main banking area and rear office   (president's   office), as  well as 
a tellers  counter.  Gray marble   (now removed)   was used along the 
baseboard  in the main banking room.   A cream-colored plaster 
ceiling  is  found in the main banking  area with  a heavy ornate 
cornice  with classical features  consisting  of dentils  -*.n& bead 
and   reel,   egg  and dart  and talon moldings.   In addition,  purely 
decorative beams running  east and west in plaster or piaster 
casing,  divide the ceiling  into three equal rectangular  areas. 

5.   Openings: 

a.   Doorways and doers; The  primary dcors  that deserve mention are 
those along the  south wail of the main banking room.  The three 
openings are evenly spaced across  the  south wall, with the door- 
way on the left  as  one faces  south providing access to the 
vault.  The vault  door  is heavy  steel with brass hardware,  silver 
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:oicred combination leek,   and  gold  framing.   Hall-Marvin 
Company,  the manufacturer of the door,  is painted in gold 
on the door.   A similar Tauit   entrance  is  found  off the  presi- 
dent's office.   Those two areas  are   separated   oj a wire 
mesh screen and tear gas  canisters   stand  inside "both 
vault doors.   The center  and right  doors off the main 
room provided  access  30  the president's office  for tellers 
counter   (center)  and the general public   (right).  These two 
doors   (now removed)   were mahogany stain with an upper textured 
translucent  pane and three rectangular raised panels below. 
All three doorways were accented by  semi-circular windows 
above,  creating a  symmetrical rhythm across the  south wall. 

c 

• 

o.   Decorative  features:  Two  skylights,  previously mentioned, 
provide a major   source  of natural  light  for the "building.   The 
larger  ten-pane,   textured translucent glass  skylight  is   flush 
with the ceiling on the  interior and has four operable center 
pivot  vending windows.   Above   it   is a 3-^'  airspace over which a 
hipped wired glass  skylight  emerges from the roof.  This roof 
projection provides light  and also ventilation through hinged 
window openings.  The three-paned skylight  in the president's 
office  is of similar design. 

7■  Mechanical  equipment: 

a. Lighting:  Artifical lighting   is provided by suspended 
flourescent   fixtures  over the rear  third of the main 
banking area  (over  tellers counter).  Fixtures appear  to 
have been on either   side of the central  skylight although 
they have since been removed.  Modern electrical light 
switches  are found  in each room. 

b. Heating:   Originally the  heating  system was coal later 
converted to oil.  A hot air furnace  is also used. 

D.   Site:   The bank faces  north on a  narrow lot  on Him. Street,   the 
main commericai  street  in iliobrara.   It  was abutted on both  sides 
by other commercial  structures which have  since been demolished. 

Prepared  by:  Kathryn A.   Burns 
Historian 
Historic American Buildings Survey 
Summer  1977 

and 
Perry Benson 
Architect 
Historic American Buildings  Survey 
Summer 1977 
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PART III.  PROJECT INFORMATION 

The Niobrara project was undertaken by the Historic American Buildings 
Survey (HA3S) in co-ooeration with the Citizens of the Village of 
Miobrara.  The project was funded by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, 
Omaha District, in compliance with Executive Order 11593 as a nifigative 
effort in the construction of the Gavins Point Dam and Lewis and Clark 
Lake.  Under the direction of John Poppeliers, chief of HA3S, the project 
was completed in the HA3S Pield Office in Miobrara, Nebraska during zhe 
summer of 1377 'zy  project supervisor Perry Senson, (university of Pennsyl- 
vania), project-historian Kathryn A. Sums (George Washington Universit]/), 
team foreman Larry Jones (Texas Tech University) and student architects 
Peter Darlow (McGill University) , Lisa 3ecker (Notre Dame University) and 
Darl Rastorfer (University of Pennsylvania).  The written historical data 
was prepared by Kathryn A. Burns and edited by Susan McCown, historian 
in the HABS office, in August 1979.  Three exterior photographs of the 
3ank were taken by Sam Amato on October 3, 1977. 


